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(BREWSTER HOSPITAL NURSE AND TRAINING SCHOOL)

915 West Monroe Street, Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida
(Lavilla section).

USGS Jacksonville Quadrangle, Universal Transverse
Mercator Coordinates: 17.435680,3355470.

Emmet Walker.

Tenants.

Multiple family dwelling.

One of the oldest brick residential structures remaining in
a Villa, the house features a unique and fancifully
designed wooden porch in which is twice incorporated the
date of construction, 1885, and was the site of the
Brewster Hospital and Nurse Training School, the tirst such
facility for blacks in Jacksonville,

"PART I. HISTORICAL INFORMATICN

A, Physical History:

1. Date of erection: 1885 (porch detail, Sanborn maps).

2. aArchitect: None known.

3. Original and subsequent owners: The structure lies on the

1877

parcel described and recorded as lot 6, Block 13 of Lavilla
Division E, in the LaVilla-Lem Turner Park deed book, p. 18, in
the office of the Title and Trust Company, of Florida, 200 East
Forsyth Street, Jacksonville, as follows:

Warranty Deed, December 22, 1877, recorded January 3,
1878, in S.P.M.W. Book D, page 927, south half of original
lot (Block) 13, etc.; passed for $1,000.00 from

Clarence H, Reid and wife Mary A, and William E. Hogg and
Wife Millie E.

to

Rhoba Lathrop
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1855 Warranty Deed, April 20, 1885, recorded May 18, 1885, in
Archibald Book A. T., page 730, so half 13, etc.; passed for
$4,000.00 from

Rhoba Lathrop
to
Hans Christian Peterson
1901 Warranty deed for one-third part, $4,000.00, in lots 4, 5,
6, Block 13, etc., August 10, 1901, recorded September 3,
1901 to liber 4 folio 429, from
Ritza Peter
ko
Freda E. Robinsoh, her sister and wife of Oswald K. Robinson
1901 Warranty Deed for 2/3 undivided interest, $8,000.00, in
lots 4, 5, 6, Block 13, etc., August 27, 1901, recorded
September 3, 1901, in liber 4, folio 432; passed from
Freda E, Robinson and husband Oswald K.

to

The Women's Home Missionary Society of the Methodist
Episcopal Church, Inc.

1901 Warranty Deed for one third undivided interest, $4,000.00,
in lots 4, 5, 6, Block 13, etc., August 27, 1901, recorded
September 3, 1901, in liber 4 folio 432, passed from
Welda Peters Shaw and husband A. M. Shaw
to

The Women's Home Missionary Society of the Methodist
Episcopal Church, Inc.

1910 Warranty Deed, April 14, 1910, recorded June 22, 1910, in
liber 67 folio 660, lots 4, 5, 6, etc.; passed from

The Women's Home Missionary Society
to

Henrietta Barrs
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Warranty Deed, April 4, 1910, recorded March 31, 1911, in
liber 78 folio 60, lots 4, 5, 6, etc.; passed from
Henrietta M. Barrs and husband

to
W. H. Paling, Jr.

Warranty Deed March 21, 1911 recorded April 3, 1911, in
liber 76 folic 310, south half Block 13; passed from

William H, Paling
to

Herman R. Finn

* Warranty Deed, May 15, 1914, recorded June 12, 1914, in liber

126 folio 511, south half of Block 13; passed from
H. R. Finn |

to
H. R. Finn Realty Co.

Warranty Deed, December 14, 1917, recorded December 27, 1914, in
liber 166 folic 702, south half Block 13; passed from

Commonwealth Realty Co., formerly H. R. Finn Realty Co,
to
S. J. White

Warranty Deed, November 11, 1925, recorded November 13, 1925, in
liber 303 folio 405, south half block 13; passed from

Sarah White, et al.

to

Joseph S, Diver
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Warranty Deed, June 23, 1943, recorded June 23, 1943, in
Liber 989 folio 246, lots 4, 5, 6, except w. 665' lot 6,
Block 13; passed from

Joseph S. Diver, et al.

to
Sidney A. Grovenstein and wife
Warranty Deed, July 23, 1946, recorded July 23, 1946, in
liber 1183 folioc 346, lcts 4, 5, 6, except w. 65' lot 6,
etc; passed from
Sidney D. Grover and wife

to
J. W. Walker and wife
Warranty Deed, May 15, 1955, recorded May 15, 1955, in
liber 1498 folio 541, lots 4, 5, 6, except w. 65' lot 6,
etc.; passed from
Shelley Middleton

to

J. W. Walker and wife

4. Qriginal plans, construction etc.: No coriginal building
records have been found for this structure.

5. Additions and alterations: A one story brick outbuilding
attached to the southwest appears on the Sanborn Insurance
Map of 1903, Sometime prior to 1929, this section became
the base of an extension of the second story rear of the
house done in wood (Walker interview). 1In 1974, the
balusters of the front porch were rotted out and were
replaced with cinderblock {Walker interview) on the first
floor only.

Historical Persons and Events Associated with the Building

According to the present owner, one of the older residents of
the neighborhood, Mr, Eddie "Scatmo" Reaves, recalls his brother
having his arm set in the house when it was being utilized as
the Brewster Hospital arcund the turn of the century. Mr.
Reaves could not be located at the time of the completion of
this reports ' :
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The Brewster Hospital and Nurse Training School was the first
such facility for blacks in the city. The physical
evidence--the one story brick segment of the building--suggests
that this was the "adjoining cottage (outfitted) for hospital
use" described in the history of the institution given in the
catalog of The Brewster Hospital Nurse Traznlng School (see

Blbllography)

According to the Annual Report for 1973 of the Medical Center
Plaza Methodist Hospital, Inc, of Jacksonville:

The story of Brewster Hospital...is interwoven with that of
Boylan-Haven, a private school for the black girls of the
community. It was during Miss Hattie Emerson's
superintendency of Boylan-Haven that the idea of hospital
service for Negroes in Jacksonville was born in the Women's
Home Missionary Society of the Methodist Church. Miss
Emerson discovered the ability and desire of some of the
girls in the Home for nurse training through the regular
instruction given in hygiene and general care of the sick,
and through the many calls that were made by teachers and
older pupils on the sick and needy. In this way, real
preparation for the formation of a nurse training class was
begun, and the need became more and more apparent as the
work at Boylan-Haven grew.

In 1901, Miss Emerson secured the services of Miss Iowa
Benson, a graduate nurse, and obtained a small room in
Whetstone College, which adjoined Boylan-Haven. The room
was furnished with two cots, a table, a few chairs, and a
cupboard for supplies., Eighteen girls paid a tuition fee
of fifty cents and the first black nurse training school in
the State of Florida was formed., Several physicians of
Jacksonville volunteered to teach and much local interest
was shown in the new class, Twice a week instruction was
given to mothers, and in four months 417 calls were made on
the sick.

Just when the work was progressing, there came the fire
that on May 3, 1901, destroyed a large part of
Jacksonville, leaving thousands of people homeless, More
than a hundred were sheltered in Boylan-Haven and patients
were rushed into the little hospital. Quickly, additional
cots and egquipment were placed in other rooms, and in five
weeks, eighty-five patients had been cared for--the small
hospital had justified its existence,
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After the fire, Boylan-Haven was moved to another part of
the c¢city and the entire school given to the hospital, but
the school was sadly in need of repair and there was no
money to spend on it. Mrs, George A. Brewster, the widow
of a minister in Danielson, Comnecticut, rescued the
struggling hospital with a gift of $1,000 to meet the
emergency, and later ancther thousand by will. In
apprecation of the gift that saved the hospital, the
hospital was named "Brewster Hospital and Nurse Training
School” (Report, pp. 2-3). '
According to the title search, it was during these critical
years after the fire that the facilities were located at 915 W.
Monroe Street., 1In 1921, they moved to larger quarters at the
northwest corner of Lee and Union Streets in Jacksonville
(Report, p.3). Ground was broken for a new hospital at Seventh
and Jefferson in 1931; after additions in 1937, 1940, 1943,
1946, and 1961 were completed, Brewster Hospital was suffering
"continuocus financial hardships in its efforts to serve the ill"
{(Report, p. 3). When the 1964 Civil Rights Act opened all of
Jacksonville's hospital to blacks, Brewster lost some of its
income and decided to close in September of 1966 (Ibid).

Further affirmation of the 915 West Monroe Street site is given
in the Training School Catalog, as follows:

Sources of Information:

1. Deeds: Title and Trust Company, of Florida, 200 East
Forsyth Street, Jacksonville,

2, Sanborn Insurance Company, Maps, 1903: Map Room, Library
East, University of Florida, Gainesville, Florida.

3. Interview:

Emmet Walker, present owner, 911 Monroe Street,
Jacksonville, August 14, 1975; concerning history of the
buildings, his recollecion of Eddie Reaves' remembrance of
the structure being used as the Brewster Hospital, and
additions and alterations made to the building,

4, Miscellaneous:

"Annual Report 1973, Medical Center Plaza, Methodist
Hospital, Inc., Jacksonville, Florida".
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{(Both are contained in the Jacksonville Master Files of the
Secretary of State's Office of Archives, History, and
Records Management, Tallahassee, Florida, filed under
"Brewster Hospital™ under the supervision of Ms. Diane D,
Greer. ) ~

PART II  ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATICN

A. General Statement:

One of the oldest brick residential structures remaining in LaVilla,
which at one time served as the Brewster Hospital and Nurse Training
School, the house features bracketed cornice with incised designs and
a unigue two story porch fancifully executed by a carpenter, twice
incorporating the construction date, 1885,

1.

10.

11.

12.

Over-all dimensions: Rectangular w 40'-8" x 79' - 9", 2
stories, 5 bay {facade). .

Foundations: Brick, brick piers.

Wall construction, finish and color. Red brick Veneer
Structural system, framing: Wooden frame, brick veneer.
Front porch, major element of house, includes turned, incised
and jig cut scroll work and pendants, twice incorporating the
date 1885; white painted wood on brick piers. Two story wWith
balcony.

Chimneys: None

Openings: Doorways and doors: Entry to central hall.

Windows headed with brick jack arches, decorative keystones and
imposts. Double hung sash.

Roof, shape, covering: Low hip, modern roofing.

Cornice, eaves: Elaborately incised and bracketed cornice, all
elevations,

Floor plans: Main floor: Central hall bordered with numbered
rooms. Central room with windows indicates beginning of rear
addition. Second floor: Same as main floor.

Stairways: Stair in central hall.
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13. Porches, stoops, bulkheads, etc¢c: Front porch, major element of
house, includes turned, incised and jig cut scroll work and

pendants, twice incorporating the date 1885; white painted wood
on brick piers. Two story with balcony.

14, Flooring: Wooden.

15, Wall and ceiling finish: Painted plaster.

16, Wall and ceiling finish: Painted plaster,

17. Doorways and doors: Paneled doors with numbers.

18, Special decorative features, trim and cabinet work: Wooden
spindle corner guards.

21, HNotable hardware: HNone.

General Setting: Mixed residential (multi-family) and commercial area,
adjacent to frame house with elaborate wooden trim. Oriented south, 185

degrees,

PART III, PROJECT INFORMATICN

This project was undertaken by the Historic American Buildings Survey in
cooperation with the Florida Bicentennial Commission and the Jacksonville
Historical and Cultural Conservation Commission, under the direction of John
Poppeliers, Chief of HABS, at the HABS Field Office, Riverside, Jacksonville,
Florida, by Susan Tate (University of Florida), project supervisor; Frederick
Wiedenmann (University of Florida), architect; Carolyn Hamm (Cornell
University), project historian; and student assistant architects Robert Moje
(University of Virginia), Ruthie Wiley (Mississippi State University), and
Robert Wiltse (Louisiana State University).
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